RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Regular Board of Directors Meeting
MINUTES
July 25, 2007
3:00 p.m. — Closed Session 5:00 p.m. - Open Session

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

President Wayne Kuntz called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Rancho Murieta
Community Services District to order at 3:00 p.m. in the District meeting room, 15160 Jackson Road,
Rancho Murieta. Directors present were Wayne Kuntz, Dick Taylor, Bobbi Belton, Bob Kjome, and
Jerry Pasek. Also present were Ed Crouse, General Manager; Les Tyler, Director of Administration;
Greg Remson, Security Chief, and Paul Siebensohn, Treatment Plant Supervisor.

2. EMPLOYEE PROMOTIONS — CERTIFICATIONS
Mone.

3. BOARD ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION at 3:03 P.M. TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING
ITEMS:

Under Government Code 54956 (a): Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation — Cease
and Desist Order.

Under Government Code 54956.9 (a) Conference with Legal Counsel — Administrative Civil Liability
Complaint No. R5-2007-0503 from California Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Under Government Code 54956.8: Real Property Megotiations — Real Property APN 128-0080-067;
APM 128-0080-068; APN 128-0080-069; APN 128-0080-76; and APN 128-0100-029. Real Property
Megotiator: Edward R. Crouse, General Manager. '

Under Government Code 54947: Public Employee Performance Evaluation: General Manager.

4/5. BOARD RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION AT 5:01 P.M. AND REPORTED THE
FOLLOWING:

Under Government Code 54956 (a): Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation — Cease
and Desist Order. Received update from Legal Counsel and General Manager. No action taken.

Under Government Code 54956.9 (a) Conference with Legal Counsel — Administrative Civil Liability
Complaint No. R5-2007-0503 from California Regional Water Quality Control Board. Received
update from Legal Counsel. No Action taken.

Under Government Code 54956.8: Real Property Negotiations — Real Property APN 128-0080-067;
APN 128-0080-068; APN 128-0080-069; APN 128-0080-76; and APN 128-0100-029. Real Property
Megotiator: Edward R. Crouse, General Manager. Received update from Real Property Negotiator
and Legal Counsel. Mo action taken.

Under Government Code 54947: Public Employee Performance Evaluation: General Manager.
Information given to legal counsel. No action taken.

6. ADOPT AGENDA
Motion/Taylor to adopt the agenda with the added item. Second/Belton. Ayes: Kuntz, Taylor,
Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

ZA5uzanne'\Board'Board Minutes\2007 minutes'Board Min 07-25-07.00C 1



Director Pasek stated that if the Board is running behind schedule, Agenda ltem 23 could be carried
over to the August Board meeting.

7. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

Al Swan thanked Paul Siebensohn the telephone call update regarding the odor issues. Mr. Swan
passed the information on to others in the neighborhood and they are all happy, as the smell has
gone away. Mr. Swan also commented on the CC&R rules regarding street parking. President Kuntz
said that Security can cite the vehicles but it is up to Rancho Murieta Association (RMA) to impose a
fine. Mr. Swan also commented on backyard landscaping that has not been completed. Chief
Remson stated that backyards are strictly an RMA issue and suggested that Mr. Swan call RMA to
speak with lan, who will follow-up. A discussion followed.

8. CONSENT CALENDAR

Under Agenda Item 8a2, under Comments/Suggestion, Director Belton stated that the minutes reflect
that Ed Crouse stated he would be gone two long weekends in July. On July 6, Directors received an
email stated that Ed would be gone for a week.

Under Agenda ltem 8a1, under Presentation by HydroScience Engineers, Director Taylor as if Mr.
Sullivan's comment on the purpose pipe and purple tank costs should have the word tank in it. Ed
Crouse stated that the reference is to all the costs being offset by reductions in water plant capacity,
augmentation supply requirements, and Phase 3 and 4 of the water plant. Mr. Sullivan stated itis a
conceptual design so tanks and piping are all inclusive.

Under Agenda ltem 8a2, Director Taylor stated there is a reference to Finance and Technology
Committee. It should be Finance Committee.

Under Agenda Item 8a2, under draft audit, Director Taylor stated Derrick’s name was spelled
incorrectly.

Under Agenda Item 8b4, under Developer Financing & Services Update, Director Taylor asked for
clarification of the expiration of the Term Sheet. Ed Crouse stated that there is a 120-day window in
order to force closure and get pro-active negotiations. Since dialogue is continuing, there is the ability
to extend it another 60 to 90 days as long as there is a good faith effort in progress.

Under Agenda item 8b2, under Resolution 2007-06 Director Stipends, Director Belton stated that the
narrative stated that Directors (plural) had requested the change, when asked which Director
requested the change; Ed Crouse stated that one Director requested the change. Director Belton
stated that the Committee recommended no change at the time. Director Taylor stated that it is
covered.

Motion/Taylor to accept the Consent Calendar. Second/Pasek. Roll Call Vote: AYES: Kuntz,
Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

9. STAFF REPORTS

Under Agenda Item 9a, Director Pasek asked for confirmation on being ahead of last year on the
carryover. Ed Crouse stated yes, about 200 acre-feet. Coming into last year's irrigation season, there
was 850 acre-feet and there was minimal use in May from RMCC. We were at about 650 acre-feet
plus at the end of June. We are now down to 450 acre-feet range. Director Pasek asked how much
RMCC uses in a month. Ed Crouse stated that in June RMCC used about 109 acre-feet, last year
they used about 102 acre-feet.

Under Agenda Item 9b, Director Pasek asked for confirmation that if an item has not been paid it will
not be on the year-end summary. Les Tyler stated that was correct. Director Belton asked when the

ZASuzanne\Board\Board Minutes\2007 minutes'Board Min 07-25-07.00C 2



books for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007 are closed. Les stated that they are closed mid-August
and then the auditors come out in August.

Under Agenda Item 9d, Director Pasek asked if a routine schedule for flushing has been instituted for
the Van Vleck tank. Paul Siebensohn stated that tanks are periodically cleaned and inspected every
year.

10. CORRESPONDENCE

Under Agenda Item 10 a, letter from Ted Hart, Director Belton stated that if she were to make a bad
decision, she will stand up and apologize but cannot apologize for the one mentioned in the letter,
President Kuntz stated that when the settlement of the ACLC is finalized, what took place and why
will be made public. Ted Hart stated that was not requesting a response to his letter, just wanted to let
the Board know his thoughts.

Director Belton asked if a resident could correspond confidentially with a Director. Steve Rudolph,
Legal Counsel, stated that a member of the public could correspond to a Director at his/her
residence. Any correspondence delivered to CSD is public record.

Director Taylor stated that he has some personal observations to discuss with Ted Hart and would
like to do so privately; if necessary, they could come up later. Mr. Hart stated that was fine.

President Kuntz commented on the letter from Marcia Oxford, stating her appreciation to the Board
for addressing her retirement a last month’s Board meeting.

11. APPROVE WWRP EXPANSION AND FINANCING REPORT

Ed Crouse gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the WWRP Expansion and
Financing Report required by the 2006 Cease and Desist Order (CDO). Work began in January 2007,
held three public workshops including a 21-day public review and comment period. The final report
incorporates the reviewed comments as appropriate. The report will be submitted to the Regional
Board on or before July 31, 2007. The report may be revised in the future, pending final comments
from the Regional Board.

Page 9, under 3.1, Director Belton asked if the projected new development and influent flows within
the RMCSD Area included the Elk Grove Unified School District (EGUSD). Ed Crouse stated that
CSD planned to provide service, but the school has identified their own wastewater and water system
improvements. The Financing and Services Agreement contract that is currently being negotiated
with the developers includes their 680 units, plus an expansion of 50 public EDU's for an undefined
public need, that can be used for anything the District identifies as public use.

Director Pasek asked if there has been any communication given back to the EGUSD indicating that.
Ed Crouse stated not specifically but CSD has not been involved in any of their current meetings
since they decided to go with their own projects since CSD could not commit to the timeliness of their
schedule. A discussion followed.

Page 4, under 2.2, the last sentence is cut off.

Page 15, under 3.3, John Sullivan commented on the disposal capacity requirements generated by
new development, the calculation based on spray field irrigation, and disinfection volume.

Page 17, under 3.4, Director Belton asked if the headworks section could be updated since the Board
has already acted on this item. Jason Brabec, HSE, stated the report can be updated to state that.
Director Belton stated that the report should state that the odor problems began in March instead of
while completing the report.

ZASuzanne'\Board\Board Minutes\ 2007 minutes\Board Min 07-25-07 . DOC 3



Page 18, John Sullivan stated that the average daily flow should include peaking flow of 3.5.

Page 23, under 4.1.2, Director Belton stated that, under the NPDES permit, the Board has not
discussed going with chlorination or Ultra Violet (UV). Ed Crouse stated that the intent is to list the
alternatives.

Page 31, under 4.2.4.2, John Sullivan commented on the Title 22 landscaping irrigation and lake
levels. Ed Crouse stated that John Sullivan had commented about the sludge removal in appendix C.
Ed stated that Jack Grossman'’s, HSe, intent was regarding out on-going efforts; if we are doing
something do it until completion but it is not necessary. An operations audit will define what is
needed. Director Pasek asked if it would be better not to include Appendix C. Ed Crouse stated yes.
A discussion followed and it was decided to delete Appendix C.

Page 31, last sentence, Director Belton stated that the purple pipe was put in as one of the three co-
equal things and commented on Title 22 landscape irrigation. Ed Crouse stated the language in the
first section could be revised to indicate the offsetting benefits should be considered.

Ed Crouse stated that staff will work with Jason Brabec, HSe, to finalize the report.

Motion/Kuntz to approve the Expansion and Financing Report, recognizing the exempt status of the
Report pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b) (3), in that there is no possibility that the
adoption of the Expansion and Financing Report may have a significant effect on the environment
and acknowledging that all improvemenits identified in the Report that are undertaken by the District
shall be subject to independent and subsequent review for CEQA compliance. This also includes all
the corrections and additions and removals that were discussed. Second/Kjome. AYES Kuntz,
Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

12. APPROVE VFD AND ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION
Paul Siebensohn gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the bid from TESCO for
VFD and electrical installation.

Motion/Pasek to approve the bid from TESCO for VFD and electrical installation, in an amount not
to exceed $89,890.00. Funding to come from the Rio Oso CIP project 00-03-1, Water Replacement
Reserves. Second(Taylor. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

13. APPROVE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT CONTRACT WITH NETWORK
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (NMC)

Les Tyler gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the bid from Network
Management Corporation (NMC) for information technology support.

Motion/Taylor to approve bid from Metwork Management Corporation (NMC) for information
technology (IT) support. The estimated cost for the managed IT services is $40,080, billed at a
monthly rate of $3,340. There is a one-time start up fee for license and workstation set up, in an
amount not to exceed $2,370. Funding to come from the General Administration Operating Budget.
Second/Belton. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

14. APPROVE AUDIT CONTRACT WITH MIKE DOODY, CPA

Les Tyler gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the bid from Mike Doody, CPA,
for preparation of audit reports for fiscal years 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. A discussion
followed.

Director Taylor stated that he does not support the recommendation.

ZiSuzanne\Board\Board Minutes\2007 minutes\Board Min 07-25-07.00C 4



Motion/Belton to approve bid from Mike Doody, CPA, for preparation of audit reports for fiscal year
2006-07, in an amount of $16,400, with the one year options up to a total of 3 years,. Funding to
come from the General Administration Operating Budget for each fiscal year. Second/Kjome.
AYES: Kuntz, Belton, Kjome, Pasek. NOES: Taylor.

15. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2007-06, DIRECTORS STIPEND

Ed Crouse gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve Resolution 2007-06 changing
the number of monthly meeting stipends of $100 per meeting or days of service rendered as a
Director from 5 days of service per month to 6 days of service per month. A discussion followed. No
Motion made.

16. APPROVE NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEE SALARY SURVEY

Ed Crouse gave a brief summary of the recommendation to adopt the 2007-09 salary ranges based
on the 2007 salary survey. Director Pasek suggested that the District participate in the CSDA salary
survey. Ed stated that the District also participates in the ACWA salary survey.

Diractor Taylor asked if the District rewards longevity or allows merit increases based upon
performance. Ed stated that under a normal step system, when someone got to the top of his or her
salary range, he/she did not move because there was no step beyond that. This allows for somebody
at the end of the salary range to move beyond that based on performance.

Motion/Pasek to adopt the proposed 2007-09 salary ranges based on the 2007 salary survey
completed by staff and reviewed by the Personnel Committee. The new ranges will be effective July
1, 2007. Second/Kjome. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

17. APPROVE PROPOSAL FOR PIEZOMETER MONITORING PROGRAM FROM CARLTON
ENGINEERING

Paul Siebensohn gave a brief summary of the recommendation to the proposal from Carlton
Engineering for Piezometer Monitoring Program, Task 4, as part of CIP 05-10-1. A discussion
followed.

Motion/ Kjome to approve proposal from Carlton Engineering for Piezometer Monitoring Program,
Task 4, as part of CIP 05-10-1, in the amount of $10,000. Funding to come from Water Replacement
Reserves. Second/Belton. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

18. APPROVE HYDROSCIENCE ENGINEERS, INC., PROPOSAL FOR EXTRA WORK FOR THE
WASTEWATER RECLAMATION PLANT BUILDOUT EXPANSION REPORT

Ed Crouse gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the proposal from HydroScience
Engineers, Inc. (HSe) for out-of-scope work related to the Reclamation Plant Expansion and
Financing Plan.

Motion/Belton to approve the additional work requested by HydroScience Engineers (HSe), in the
amount of $10,500, for out-of-scope work related to the Reclamation Plant Expansion and Financing
Plan. Funding to come from Sewer Replacement Reserves for CDO related expenses.
Second/Kjome. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

19. APPROVE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR AN OPERATIONS AUDIT

Director Pasek gave a summary of the request to approve the Request for Proposal (RFP) for an
Operations Audit. Director Pasek stated that the purpose of the audit is to get an outside,
independent view and to gain more credibility with the community that what we are doing here is the
best practices that can be done. If not, provide information that we can assess where, when and
how we can bring it to that level. Costs to implement the recommendations would be considered and
rates raised if necessary. A discussion followed.

ZASuzanne'\Board\Board Minutes\ 2007 minutes\Board Min 07-25-07 . DOC 5



Motion/Kjome to approve the Request for Proposal (RFP) for an Operations Audit. Second/Belton.
AYES: Kuntz, Belton, Kjome, Pasek. NOES: Taylor.

20. APPROVE HYDROSCIENCE ENGINEERING PROPOSAL FOR PERMITTING SERVICES —
NPDES PERMIT

Ed Crouse gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the proposal from HydroScience
Engineers, Inc. (HSe) for permitting services for the NPDES Permit for long-term disposal of recycled
water via discharge for intermittent and seasonal discharge into the Cosumnes River. Ed will continue
to work with HSe on the scope items.

Motion/Belton to approve the proposal from HydroScience Engineers, Inc. for permitting services —
NPDES Permit, in an amount not to exceed $80,800.00. Funding to come from Sewer Replacement
Reserves, with future reimbursement from rate increases or transfers of net income.
Second/Kjome. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

21. APPROVE HYDROSCIENCE ENGINEERS PROPOSAL FOR DESIGN ENGINEERING
SERVICES —- HEADWORKS AND ODOR CONTROL SCRUBBER

Ed Crouse gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the proposal from HydroScience
Engineers for design services — headworks and odor control scrubber.

Motion/Pasek to approve the proposal from HydroScience Engineers, Inc., for design services —
headworks and odor control scrubber, in an amount not to exceed $81,535.00. Funding to come from
Sewer Replacement Reserves. Second/Belton. AYES: Kuntz, Taylor, Belton, Kjome, Pasek.

22. CONSIDER PREPARATION OF A CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

President Kuntz stated that Director Belton requested the Communication & Technology Committee
review the re-instating the customer satisfaction survey. Director Pasek stated that Director Belton
stated she preferred to look at the customer satisfaction survey with a small ad hoc committee,
formally or informally, to develop a new survey that would go out in the next six months. Director
Belton suggested each Board member recommend a community member to work on the committee.
There is no need to re-write the survey. Director Pasek suggested Wilbur Haines. Director Belton
suggested Judith Embree. Director Taylor stated that the Communication & Technology Committee
already told Mrs. Ferraro that her participation was welcome. Director Belton will contact residents to
form the committee. Director Pasek suggested the survey be sent out after the beginning of the year.

Ed Crouse stated that ad hoc committee is just a recommendation committee that will bring
something to the Board. The Board will decide to revise or rewrite the survey at their discretion.

Director Kjome stated that Director Belton should form the committee then bring it back to the Board
for final approve by President Kuntz and discussion among Board members.

23. REVIEW STRATEGIC PLAN
This item will be carried over to the August 2007 Regular Board meeting.

24. RECEIVE CEASE AND DESIST ORDER UPDATE

Ed Crouse stated that the only outstanding item is the completion of the Groundwater Monitoring.
Eight out of ten monthly samples have been completed. The statistical analysis will be included in the
background groundwater constituent analysis. This report will be submitted to the Regional Board no
later than December 2007. Progress is continuing on the carry over storage, we currently at about
200 acre-feet ahead of schedule and plan to be between 100-200 acre-feet at the end of the irrigation
season. We will be starting the Van Vleck Temporary Emergency Irrigation Disposal Project, which

235 uzanne\Board\Board Minutes\2007 minutes\Board Min 07-25-07.000C 6






